1992

Layton City v. Karl John Weihert : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The specific statutory authority that confers jurisdiction on the Utah Court of Appeals to decide this appeal is Utah Code Annotated Section 78-2a-3(2)(c).

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This case is an appeal from the final Judgment of the Second Circuit Court dealing with a DUI (driving under the influence of alcohol).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Whether the prosecution in this case was commenced properly?
Whether the affidavits were legally sufficient to be admitted?

DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS OR STATUTES

Utah State Constitution Article 1 Section 13

Utah Code Annotated Section 78-2a-3(2)(c)

Utah Code Annotated Section 41-6-44 (1953 as amended)

Utah Code Annotated Section 76-1-302 (2)

Utah Code Annotated Section 77-7-21 (2)

Utah Code Annotated Section 76-1-501

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. NATURE OF THE CASE

This case is an appeal from a jury verdict and conviction in the Second Circuit Court, Layton Department.

II. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

The Defendant/Appellant was charged with Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol. The case came to trial on May 20, 1992. The jury convicted the Defendant/Appellant of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol. The defendant was sentenced. A Certificate of Probable Cause was requested and granted.

III. DISPOSITION AT TRIAL COURT

At the trial in this matter the Defendant/Appellant was convicted of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol by a jury.

IV. STATEMENT OF FACTS

On December 22, 1991 the Defendant/Appellant was stopped and arrested for Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol. The matter came on for trial on May 20, 1992. At the beginning of the trial counsel objected to the manner in which the Information was filed. The Judge allowed the trial to proceed over the objections of defense counsel. The City attempted to introduce affidavits into evidence to show the reliability of the breath machine used to test the Defendant/Appellant's breath. Defense counsel objected based

upon the form and adequacy of the affidavits. The trial Judge allowed the affidavits to be admitted over the objections of counsel. The jury found the Defendant/Appellant guilty and this appeal followed.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Both the Utah State Constitution as well as statutes of the State of Utah require that criminal prosecutions be commenced in specific ways. This prosecution was commenced in a manner not allowed by law.

In civil cases in Utah Courts, affidavits may be used for specific purposes. In order to use affidavits under Utah Rules of Civil Procedure the affidavit must rise to certain levels of content and reliability. They may not contain hearsay nor conclusions. They must be based on facts and personal knowledge and the content must be admissible at trial. If Rule 56 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure sets these standards for the use of affidavit in civil matters then the same or greater standards must be applied to criminal matters. In the present case the affidavits were full of hearsay and conclusions and as such should not have been admitted at trial.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

WHETHER THE PROSECUTION IN THIS CASE WAS COMMENCED PROPERLY?

The defendant/appellant in this case was stopped by Officer Keith and subsequently arrested for violation of Utah Code Annotated 41-6-44 (1953 as amended) (hereinafter UCA). This matter

came to trial on May 20, 1992 in Layton Circuit Court. The information in this matter was filed with the Clerk of the Court and signed by the prosecutor on May 15, 1992 at 3:55 p.m. (see Trial Transcript p. 29) (hereinafter TT p. 29). At the time of the filing it was not presented to the Magistrate for his examination and commitment. Prosecution is "commenced" with the filing of the Information (see UCA 76-1-302 (2)) which provides that "A prosecution is commenced upon the finding and filing of an indictment by a grand jury or upon the filing of a complaint or information." Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure Rule 5 (hereinafter URCrP Rule 5) provides:

Unless otherwise provided all criminal prosecutions whether for felony, misdemeanor or infraction shall be commenced by the filing of an information or the return of an indictment. Prosecution by information shall be commenced before a magistrate having jurisdiction of the offense alleged to have been committed unless otherwise provided by law.

This is the requirement for the commencement of a criminal prosecution. This provision does not allow for the commencement of the criminal prosecution upon the filing of the traffic citation, which was prepared by the arresting officer.

URCrP Rule 4 provides further that:

(a) Unless otherwise provided, all offenses shall be prosecuted by indictment or information sworn to by a person having reason to believe the offense has been committed. (emphasis added).

UCA 77-7-21 (2) provides:

If the person cited wilfully fails to appear before a magistrate pursuant to a citation issued under Section 77-7-18, or pleads not guilty to the offense charged, or does not deposit bail on or before the date set for his appearance, an information shall

be filed and proceedings held in accordance with the Rules of Criminal Procedure and all applicable provisions of this code, which information shall be deemed an original pleading, however, that the person cited may by written agreement waive the filing of the information and thereafter the prosecution may proceed on the citation notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary.

In the case at bar the Information was filed 5 days prior to the time of trial and some*****days after the date of the arrest. This is clearly not a case where the criminal prosecution was commenced by the filing of the Information.

The Utah State Constitution requires that criminal prosecutions proceed by way of Information:

Offenses heretofore required to be prosecuted by indictment, shall be prosecuted by information after examination and commitment by a magistrate, unless the examination be waived by the accused with the consent of the State... (Utah State Constitution Article 1 Section 13)

There are no provisions which allow the bypass of the presentment, examination and commitment by a magistrate of an Information. The provisions are very specific and consistent from provision to provision. In this case the Information was never presented to the Magistrate until after the jury had been sworn. (see TT p. 30-32 and 39). This was an unacceptable means to commence the prosecution of this matter. The prosecution of this matter was commenced in an unconstitutional and unlawful manner.

POINT II

WHETHER THE AFFIDAVITS WERE LEGALLY SUFFICIENT TO BE ADMITTED?

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 81 (e) states:

(e) **Application in criminal proceedings.** These

rules of procedure shall govern in any aspect of criminal proceedings where there is no other applicable statute or rule, provided, that any rule so applied does not conflict with any statutory or constitutional requirement. (emphasis in original).

This is an attempt to round out the rules by which criminal prosecutions are governed. It provides that in the absence of other governing provisions, rules, or statutes then Utah Rules of Civil Procedure (hereinafter URCP) are applicable and actually govern.

In the case at bar there was an attempt by the prosecution to introduce affidavits. The affidavits were to be introduced pursuant to UCA 41-6-44.3. This section provides:

(2) In any action or proceeding in which it is material to prove that a person was operating or in actual physical control of a vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or any drug or operating with a blood or breath alcohol content statutorily prohibited, documents offered as memoranda or records of acts, conditions, or events to prove that the analysis was made and the instrument used was accurate, according to standards established in Subsection (1), are admissible if:

- (a) the judge finds that they were made in the regular course of the investigation at or about the time of the act, condition, or event; and
- (b) the source of information from which made and the method and circumstances of their preparation indicate their trustworthiness.

The State attempted to satisfy this requirement by the introduction of three affidavits (see TT p. 108). The introduction of these affidavits is an attempt to satisfy this requirement was objected to by defense counsel at that time (see TT p. 109). The affidavits which were proffered by the State contained statements which were hearsay and also contained

conclusions which were more appropriately left to the Judge to find. (see Exhibit 1 herein).

URCP Rule 56 places certain criteria on affidavits to be introduced and used in a pending case. This rule deals with a Motion for Summary Judgment. Pursuant to URCP Rule 81 and the absence of any rule to the contrary, this rule will control in a criminal prosecution. URCP Rule 56 (e) is the provision which establishes the standard of affidavits to be used in court, it states:

Supporting and opposing affidavits shall be made on personal knowledge, shall set forth such facts as would be admissible in evidence, and shall show affirmatively that the affiant is competent to testify to the matters stated therein. ...but his response, by affidavit or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set forth specific facts... .
(emphasis added)

The affidavits as introduced by the prosecution contained conclusions and hearsay. Neither of the foregoing would be admissible at trial on the issues.

Some of the conclusions contained in the affidavit of the breath testing technician is as follows:

- A. This was done according to the standards established by the Commissioner of the Utah Department of Public Safety
- B. Gives readings in grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath.

One of the hearsay statements contained in Christian Koorring's Affidavit is:

- A. The attached tests were done before and after the date of December 22, 1991.

The Affidavit of Christian Koorring contained hearsay when he

swore that the attached tests were conducted on the given dates when he indeed did not or in the alternative did not indicate that he had personal knowledge thereof. Further the conclusion that he was the custodian of the records is just that a conclusion. The fact that he was or was not the custodian of the records is a decision or finding to be made by the Court after reviewing specific facts which would allow the court to make such a decision. This affidavit would be improper as a document in support of a parties Motion for Summary Judgment and as well should be improper in a criminal matter. In the civil case the burden of proof for the plaintiff to prevail is by a preponderance of the evidence. In a criminal matter the burden of proof is beyond a reasonable doubt (see UCA 76-1-501). With the higher burden of proof it would not be appropriate to relax the standard for an affidavit to be introduced and used.

The affidavit of the breath testing technician is flawed as well. Therein he makes the conclusion that the steps taken comply with the standards of the Commissioner of Public Safety. The appropriate means of presenting this information would be to give the specific requirements and the specific conduct satisfying the requirements and allow the Judge to determine if indeed the requirements had been met. In the affidavits introduced and based upon the conclusions stated therein we have no way of knowing what requirements or standards the technician is referring to and what he actually did to comply therewith. This removes from the Court the opportunity to look past the conclusions and to make the