1992

# Layton City v. Karl John Weihert : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

**STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION**

This appeal arises from a jury verdict and conviction in the Second Circuit Court, Layton Department. Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3 (2)(d), this Court of Appeals has appellate jurisdiction over criminal appeals from the circuit courts.

**NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS**

This is an appeal from a jury verdict and final judgement convicting the Defendant of driving under the influence of alcohol ("DUI").

**STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES**

This Court must determine whether the actions of the prosecuting attorney in signing the information, presenting it to and filing it with the office of the clerk properly commenced prosecution of this case.

The Court must further determine whether the affidavits of the certified breath test technician and the breath testing

supervisor satisfy the legal requirements of Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3 and the Utah rules of evidence and procedure governing the admissibility of affidavits.

In making these determinations, the Court will examine the trial court's interpretation of pertinent statutory authority and the trial court's determination of the legal sufficiency of the affidavits. "Questions of . . . statutory interpretation are matters of law, not of fact; the trial court's ruling is therefore a question of law that [the Court] review[s] for correctness." State v. Mitchell, 824 P.2d 469, 471-72 (Utah App. 1991); No particular deference is given to the trial court's interpretation. Roosevelt City Corp. v. Nebeker, 815 P.2d 738, 739 (Utah App. 1991) (citing Berube v. Fashion Centre, Ltd., 771 P.2d 1033, 1038 (Utah 1989)); See also State v. Swapp, 155 Utah Adv. Rep 25 (Utah App. 1991); Asay v. Watkins, 751 P.2d 1135, 1136 (Utah 1988).

**DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES  
AND RULES OF EVIDENCE**

Utah Const. art. I. § 13.

Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3.

Utah Code Ann. § 77-2-1.1.

Utah Code Ann. § 77-7-21.

Utah R. Crim. P. 4(a).

Utah R. Crim. P. 5(a).

Utah R. Evid. 902.

Utah R. Evid. 1005.



### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Defendant/Appellant has entered this appeal from a jury verdict and conviction for driving under the influence of alcohol ("DUI"). The matter came on for trial May 20, 1992. At trial, Defendant/Appellant made a motion to dismiss on the basis that the Information had been improperly filed. The Court allowed the trial to go forward over Defendant/Appellant's objection after finding that the Information had been filed in compliance with a newly enacted statute and after taking precautionary, curative steps.

During the course of the trial Plaintiff/Appellee offered into evidence affidavits of a certified breath technician and the custodian of the records. Defendant/Appellant objected to the admission of the affidavits on the basis that the affidavits contained hearsay and conclusions and therefore did not meet the necessary requirements under the Utah Rules of Evidence. The trial court overruled defense counsel's objections finding that the affidavits met the standards for admissibility set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3.

Defendant/Appellant appeals from the trial court's rulings on these two issues.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant/Appellant was arrested December 22, 1991 on the charge of DUI pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44. Defendant/Appellant was booked in Davis County Jail and issued DUI Summons and Citation Number D108720. (Trial Court Record, p. 6)

(hereinafter "Tr. rec."). The Defendant was released from jail by pre-trial services December 23, 1992 (Tr. rec. p. 9). A copy of the summons and citation was filed with the Second Circuit Court, Layton Department, December 24, 1992. (Tr. rec. p. 1).

Defendant/Appellant's first personal court appearance was at the pretrial conference held April 1, 1992. The matter was scheduled for jury trial May 20, 1992. (Tr. rec. p. 1).

A formal Information was filed May 15, 1992 charging Defendant/Appellant with DUI, a class "B" misdemeanor.<sup>1</sup> (Tr. rec. p. 1)(Trial Transcript Record, p. 18)(hereinafter "R."). In filing the Information the prosecuting attorney signed, presented and filed the information in the office of the clerk. The Information was subscribed by court clerk B. Love. (Tr. rec. p. 18). The Information was not sworn before or presented to a magistrate at the time of filing. (Tr. rec. p. 18, R. p. 30).

The matter came to trial May 20, 1992 at which time both parties indicated their readiness to proceed. Following jury voir dire and impanelment, the Defendant/Appellant made a motion to dismiss on the basis that the Information had not been sworn to before and subscribed by a magistrate. (R. 29). Plaintiff/Appellee explained how the Information had been filed and referred to the new statute governing the filing of informations. (The statute was later to be identified as Utah Code Ann. 77-2-

---

<sup>1</sup>The case was filed as a class "B" misdemeanor pursuant to the penalties for DUI set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44(3)(a). The Information formalized the information on the citation. There were no additions to or changes in the allegations set forth in the citation.

1.1.) The Court acknowledged the existence of the new statute and took notice that the citation itself had been timely filed. (R. 30). The Court further agreed to subscribe the new rule in the event "there is a problem with prior offenses." (R. 30) The Court found that the statute affecting the procedure for filing informations made procedural changes only. (R. 30-31) The Court then had the prosecuting attorney, counsel for the Plaintiff/Appellee, sign the information under oath and subscribed it thereto. (R. 32).

The trial proceeded with the testimony of the arresting officer. During the officer's testimony regarding the intoxilizer instrument Plaintiff/Appellee offered Plaintiff's Exhibit 3, affidavits of the certified breath test technician and the custodian certificate. Counsel for Defendant/Appellant objected to the admission of the affidavits on the basis that the affidavits did not meet the appropriate criteria for admissibility. (R. 108-119, 124-127). Plaintiff/Appellee objected to the Court's allowing the Defendant/Appellant to argue his objection as the issue was not timely raised under Rule 12 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure. (R. 108). The Court did not rule on the timeliness of Defendant/Appellant's objection but did overruled his objections, making the specific findings required for admission of the affidavits as set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3. (R. 127-131). The affidavits were admitted into evidence. (R. 132-33).

At the conclusion of the trial and after deliberation the jury returned a verdict of guilty.

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Information was filed in accordance with statutory requirements. The statutory requirements are consistent with the pertinent rules of procedure. The state constitutional section cited by the Defendant/Appellant is inapplicable in that it pertains only to grand jury proceedings.

The affidavits introduced as evidence to show the reliability of the breath test machine qualify under the statutory hearsay exception established in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3 and are legally and factually sufficient to meet statutory and evidentiary requirements for admissibility.

### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I

#### **THE INFORMATION WAS PROPERTY FILED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS**

Utah Code Ann. § 77-7-21 provides in pertinent part as follows:

(1) Whenever a citation is issued pursuant to the provisions of Section 77-7-18, the copy of the citation filed with the magistrate may be used in lieu of an information . . . .

(2) If the person cited fails to appear. . . , or pleads not guilty to the offense, or does not deposit bail on or before the date set for his appearance, an information shall be filed and proceedings held in accordance with the Rules of Criminal Procedure and all other applicable provisions of this code, which information shall be deemed an original pleading; . . . the person cited may by written agreement waive the filing of the information. . . .

Utah Code Ann. § 77-7-21 (1990). Under Utah Code Ann. § 76-1-302, "a prosecution for . . . a misdemeanor other than negligent homicide shall be commenced within two years after it is committed . . . ."

Rule 4(a) of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure states as follows:

(a) Unless otherwise provided, all offenses shall be prosecuted by indictment or information sworn to by a person having reason to believe the offense has been committed.

Utah R. Crim. P. 4(a). In addition, Rule 5 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure states the following:

(a) Unless otherwise provided, all criminal prosecutions whether for felony, misdemeanor or infraction shall be commenced by the filing of an information or the return of an indictment. Prosecution by information shall be commenced before a magistrate having jurisdiction of the offense alleged to have been committed unless otherwise provided by law.

U.R.Crim.P. 5(a).

Article I, Section 13 of the Utah Constitution cited by Defendant/Appellant is inapplicable. That section pertains only to grand jury proceedings. Section 13 provides that "[o]ffenses heretofore required to be prosecuted by indictment, shall be prosecuted by information after examination and commitment by a magistrate . . . . Utah Const. art. I, § 13. An indictment is "an accusation in writing presented by a grand jury to the district court charging a person with a public offense." Utah Code Ann. § 77-1-3(2) (1990).

Therefore, in summary, absent written waiver from a Defendant, an information is required to commence prosecution and

prosecution for a misdemeanor offense must be commenced within two years from the date of the offense. The information must be sworn to and subscribed by a magistrate "unless otherwise provided by law." U.R.Crim.P. 4(a), U.R.Crim.P. 5(a).

The 1992 Legislature enacted an additional section to the Utah Code of Criminal Procedure which provides another method for filing informations. The newly-enacted section reads as follows:

The prosecuting attorney shall sign all informations. The prosecuting attorney may:

- (1) sign the information in the presence of a magistrate; or
- (2) present and file the information in the office of the clerk where the prosecution is commenced upon the signature of the prosecuting attorney.

Utah Code Ann. § 77-2-1.1. (Supp. 1992). Section 77-2-1.1 became effective April 27, 1992. See 1992 Utah Laws 33.<sup>2</sup>

---

<sup>2</sup>Although Utah Code Ann. § 77-2-1.1 became effective four months after Defendant/Appellant's arrest, it still applies to the proceedings against him as it is remedial in nature. A statute is remedial when it relates to practice, procedure, or remedies and does not affect a substantive or vested right. Camer v. Seattle School Dist. No. 1, 52 Wash. App. 531, 762 P.2d 356 (1988). Legislation which is remedial in nature is to be liberally construed to effectuate the purpose for which it was enacted. Gonzales v. Callison, 9 Kan. App.2d 567, 683 P.2d 454 (1984).

In passing section 77-2-1.1 the legislature clearly intended to create a less cumbersome filing procedure for misdemeanor prosecutions. It is well established that

[d]espite the existence of some contrary authority, remedial statutes or statutes relating to remedies or modes of procedure, which do not create new or take away vested rights, do not normally come within the legal conception of a retrospective law, or the general rule against the retrospective operation of statutes. . . .

In the absence of any saving clause a new law changing a rule of practice is generally regarded as applicable to all cases then pending. . . .

The prosecution of the Defendant/Appellant was commenced by the filing of the information on May 15, 1992--nineteen days after the effective date of Utah Code Ann. § 77-2-1.1 and less than two years from the date of commitment of the alleged offense--and was therefore commenced in the manner prescribed by law.<sup>3</sup>

## POINT II

THE AFFIDAVITS OF THE CUSTODIAN OF THE RECORDS AND THE CERTIFIED BREATH TEST TECHNICIAN WERE PROPERLY ADMITTED UNDER UTAH CODE ANN. § 41-6-44.3 AND UTAH RULES OF EVIDENCE.

### Affidavits of the Breath Test Technician

Defendant/Appellant does not challenge the constitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3, but challenges the legal

---

Sometimes the rule is stated in the form that when a statute deals with procedure only it applies to all actions - those which have accrued or are pending and future actions. . . .

73 Am Jur 2d. 354 n.42.

<sup>3</sup>The information was filed five months after Defendant/Appellant's arrest and only five days before trial. Counsel for Defendant/Appellant did not receive a copy of the Information until the morning of trial. (R. 29) Although the issues of speedy trial and prejudice are implicated, Defendant did not raise these issues at trial and therefore has not preserved them on appeal. Therefore this Court "will not consider them." Roosevelt City v. Nebeker, 815 P.2d 738, 739 n.2 (Ut.App. 1991) citing State v. Webb, 790 P.2d 65, 71, n.2 (Utah 1990). Furthermore, Under Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, "[a]ny error, defect, irregularity or variance which does not affect the substantial rights of a party shall be disregarded." Utah R. Crim. P. 30(a). State v. Johnson, 771 P.2d 1071 (Utah 1989) (court will not reverse a conviction unless the error is substantial and prejudicial in the sense that there is a reasonable likelihood that in its absence there would have been a more favorable result for the defendant.) Defendant has made no showing of prejudice as a result of the way the Information was filed.

sufficiency of the breath test technician's and supervisor's affidavits and the trial court's findings that the affidavits meet the requirements for admissibility under Utah Code Ann. §41-6-44.3. Defendant/Appellant argues that the affidavits contain hearsay and conclusions and are therefore inadmissible under Rule 81 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

In Murray City v. Hall, 663 P.2d 1314 (Utah 1983), the Utah Supreme Court recognized Section 41-6-44.3 as a statutory exception to the hearsay rule. Hall, Id. The Utah Supreme Court's decision in Hall has since been consistently followed and reaffirmed by this Court. Layton City v. Bennett, 741 P.2d 965 (Utah App. 1987); Bountiful City v. Maestes, 788 P.2d 1062 (Utah App. 1990); Roosevelt City v. Nebeker, 815 P.2d 738 (Utah App. 1991).

The Court. in Hall, found that Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3 was

a codification of the findings necessary to establish a proper foundation for the introduction of breathalyzer evidence. It is a legislative recognition of the universal acceptance of the reliability of such evidence.

Hall, Id. at 1320. However, the Court made it clear that

prior to the acceptance of those affidavits . . . [the statute] requires an affirmative finding by the trial court that (1) the calibration and testing for accuracy of the breathalyzer and the ampoules were performed in accordance with the standards established by the Commissioner of Public Safety, (2) the affidavits were prepared in the regular course of the public officer's duties, (3) that they were prepared contemporaneously with the act, condition or event, and (4) the "source of information from which made the method and circumstances of their preparation were such as to indicate their trustworthiness."



Id. (citing Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3).

In Maestas, this Court ruled that the trial court must make specific findings set forth in Hall on the record in order for the affidavits to qualify for the statutory hearsay exception set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3. Maestas, 788 P.2d at 1065 (citing Hall, 663 P.2d at 1320 n.4.)

The trial court made the requisite Hall findings in the case before the Court. The trial court found as follows:

In looking at these document, I--they appear that the calibration and testing of the machine was done pursuant to the standards established by the Commissioner of Public Safety, if I admit Koorings affidavit [the custodian's certificate] in, and then the other affidavit of Ron Ellsworth [breath test technician's affidavit], and that, I believe, is the intent of the statute. And that these affidavits were prepared in the regular course of these public officers' duties and that they were prepared contemporaneously with the act, condition or event that they purport to be certifying to. And in reasonable proximity to those times finding that specifically the one affidavit was not signed until a day later by Ronald Ellsworth, he asserts that he did the test on January 20th at 9:40 a.m. but did not swear to that until January the 21st . . . .

I further find that the source of this information from which made, and the method and circumstances of the preparation are such as to indicate trustworthiness.

(R. 130-31).

The trial court's findings of fact were correct and should not be set aside. A review of the standards set forth by the Commissioner of the Utah Department of Public Safety shows that the testing procedures as set forth on the face of the breath test technician's affidavits do, in fact, conform to those

standards.<sup>4</sup> The affidavit states on its face that the information contained therein was prepared contemporaneously with the instrument check and in the course of the technician's regular duties. There is nothing on the face of the documents suggesting a lack of trustworthiness.<sup>5</sup>

Defendant/Appellant makes reference to the following two statements on the technician's affidavit which he considers conclusions:

2. This was done according to the standards established by the Commissioner of the Utah Department of Public Safety.

\* \* \*

---

<sup>4</sup>Utah Admin. R. 735-500-5(4)(1991) states as follows:

The specificity of the procedure shall be adequate and appropriate for the reasonable analysis of breath specimen for the determination of alcohol concentration in law enforcement. The instrument function to be checked shall include, but not necessarily be limited to the following:

1. Intoxilyzer 4011 series.
  - (a) electrical power.
  - (b) operating temperature.
  - (c) internal purge.
  - (d) zero set.
  - (e) printer deactivation.
  - (f) fixed absorption calibration (if so equipped),
  - (g) known reference samples.
  - (h) reads in grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath.

<sup>5</sup>Defendant/Appellant makes reference to the fact that the test record for January 20, 1992 was sworn before a notary public on January 21, 1992, one day after the test was made. The trial court made the specific finding that in itself did not show a lack of trustworthiness. (R. 130). Furthermore, a closer review of the affidavit shows that the breath test technician signed the test record and affidavit twice--presumably once on January 20, 1992, when he executed the affidavit and again when he attested, under oath to the truthfulness of the contents of the affidavit.

THE FOLLOWING TESTS WERE MADE:

\* \* \*

Gives readings in grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath.

Neither of these referenced statements are conclusions. These statements are facts of which the affiant, the certified breath test technician, had personal knowledge. Therefore, the affidavit meets the requirements of Rule 81 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure cited by Defendant.

The affidavits of the certified breath test technician offered by the prosecution and admitted into evidence met the requirements set forth in Murray City v. Hall, and were therefore properly admitted by the trial court.

#### Custodian Certificate

The Supreme Court's ruling in Hall addressed the affidavits of the breath test technician and did not directly rule on the admissibility of the custodian's affidavit. However, in Maestes, this Court found that

Hall stated that affidavits proving the accuracy of breathalyzer equipment must "show on their face that the affiants . . . attest from their own personal knowledge." Id. We find that both affidavits [of the custodian and the breath test technician] comply with the personal knowledge requirements.

The breath testing supervisor signed his name to the custodian affidavit, listed the intoxilyzer serial number, and filled in the date upon which the test was completed. The custodian affidavit used the term "I" indicating that the breath testing supervisor personally attested to the information contained in the affidavit. . . .

Maestas, 788 P.2d at 1065 (citing Hall, Id.). The ruling of the Court impliedly recognizes that the affidavit of the breath testing supervisor is a necessary part of the foundation required for admission of the affidavits of the breath test technician and the breath test results. As a necessary part of the foundation, the affidavit of the breath testing supervisor is entitled to the statutory hearsay exception set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3.

Although the custodian affidavit is entitled to the hearsay exception under Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3, the affidavit must still comply with the Utah Rules of Evidence. Rule 1005 of the Utah Rules of Evidence states as follows:

The contents of an official records . . . if otherwise admissible, may be proved by copy, certified as correct in accordance with Rule 902 . . . .

Utah R. Evid. 1005. Rule 902(4) regarding certified copies of public records requires the following:

Extrinsic evidence of authenticity as a condition precedent to admissibility is not required with respect to the following:

\* \* \*

(4) **Certified copies of public records.** A copy of an official records or report . . . certified as correct by the custodian or other person authorized to make the certification, by certificate complying with Paragraph (1), (2), or (3) of this rule or complying with any law of the United States or of this state.

U. R. Evid. 902(4). Subsection (2) of Rule 902 reads as follows:

(2) **Domestic public documents not under seal** A document purporting to bear the signature in his official capacity of an officer or employee of any [state], [is admissible] if a public officer having a seal and having official duties in the district or political

subdivision of the officer or employee certifies under seal that the signer has the official capacity and that the signature is genuine.

The custodian certificate was sworn before a Notary Public who certified "under seal" that Sgt. Kooring, the breath testing supervisor, was "an officer and employee of the Department of Public Safety of the State of Utah and is the legal custodian of the intoxilyzer affidavits of said department. The notary public further certified that "his signature affixed hereto is genuine." Therefore the requirements of Rules 902 and 1005 were met and the custodian certificate was properly admitted as foundation for the admission of the affidavits of the certified breath test technician.

Defendant/Appellant argues that the following statements contained in the affidavit of the breath testing supervisor are either hearsay or conclusory in nature:

1. I am the Breathtesting Supervisor of the Utah Highway Patrol and the official keeper of and responsible for the maintenance check records of the breathtesting instruments maintained in the State of Utah.

\* \* \*

3. The attached tests were done before and after the date of December 22, 1991.

However, the affiant, Sgt. Christian Kooring, also states as follows:

5. I am competent to testify and have personal knowledge of the matters alleged in this affidavit.

The statements referred to by Defendant/Appellant are neither conclusions nor hearsay, but are facts of which the affiant has personal knowledge.

The custodian certificate is a necessary document for a proper foundation for the admission of the affidavits of the certified breath test technician. The custodian certificate meets all the legal requirements of the Utah Rules of Evidence and is entitled to the same hearsay exception set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3. Therefore, the custodian certificate was properly admitted into evidence by the trial court.


#### CONCLUSION

The prosecution of the Defendant/Appellant was commenced in accordance with Utah Code Ann. § 77-2-1.1 and other statutory and procedural requirements and was therefore commenced in the manner prescribed by law.

The affidavits of the certified breath test technician evidence met the requirements set forth in Murray City v. Hall, and were therefore properly admitted by the trial court. The custodian certificate is a necessary document for a proper foundation for the admission of the affidavits of the certified breath test technician and is therefore entitled to the same hearsay exception set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 41-6-44.3. Furthermore, the custodian certificate meets all the legal requirements of the Utah Rules of Evidence and was properly admitted into evidence by the trial court.


Base one the foregoing, Plaintiff/Appellee respectfully requests that the ruling's of the trial court be affirmed.